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1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

2                     [FEBRUARY 7, 2017]

3                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

4 We'll go ahead and get this started.

5              We're here for two public hearings.  The first

6 public hearing will be File Number 160212, Darlene Green.

7              Scottie.

8                        MS. EAGAN:  First I'll read the

9 hearing procedures, and then I'll go into the staff report.

10              At this time, I would like to place into the

11 record the Franklin County Unified Land Use Regulations as

12 Exhibit A, the official Zoning Map as Exhibit B, the

13 official Master Plan as Exhibit C, and the case file for

14 each case as Exhibit D for all the cases to be heard at this

15 hearing.

16                        [Thereupon, evidence was marked for

17                   identification and presented for the

18                   record as Exhibits A, B, C, and D.]

19              As each case is opened, a staff report will

20 first be read by the Planning and Zoning Department,

21 followed by the Commissioners' questions for the staff.

22              Then if anyone in the audience would like to

23 speak or comment during the hearing, they must first print

24 their name on the sign-in sheet provided, and then be sworn

25 in.  When it is your turn to speak, you will come to the
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1 front of the room to address the Commission and only the

2 Commission, not anyone in the audience, with any questions

3 or comments.

4              Generally, the applicant for the rezoning is

5 allowed to speak first, followed by those in support of the

6 rezoning and then those opposed to the rezoning.

7              The applicant may speak again after comments

8 from the general public to address any questions or issues

9 brought up during the hearing.

10              At the conclusion of all questions, comments,

11 and discussion concerning each case, the public hearing for

12 each case will conclude.  The decision will generally be

13 made by Commission Order at a later date during the County

14 Commission's regular meeting time.

15              This is File 160212.  The Applicant is Darlene

16 Green.

17              The Applicant requests to rezone one parcel

18 from Residential Development to Commercial Activity Highway

19 Service.

20              The property is located on West Springfield

21 Road, approximately 3/4 miles west of Peacock Road in

22 Central Township.

23              The Facts:  The total area for the rezoning is

24 approximately 17 acres.

25              The zoning of this property is Residential
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1 Development.  The Applicant would like to rezone to

2 Commercial Activity Highway Service.

3              Commercial Activity Highway Service zoning

4 accommodates commercial uses that draw business primarily

5 along the major highways within the county.

6              The properties around the proposed site

7 southeast of Springfield Road are primarily zoned

8 Residential Development.

9              The properties across Springfield Road are

10 zoned Commercial Activity Highway Service.

11              This property is across the highway from the

12 city limits of St. Clair.

13              This property is surrounded primarily by

14 low-density residential land.

15              The property directly south of this parcel has

16 self-storage units.

17              There is a property north of this parcel that

18 has a commercial business, which appears to be an office and

19 some sort of vehicle repair business.

20              This property has access to Springfield Road,

21 which is a county-maintained road.

22              Staff Comments:  The Future Land Use map shows

23 this property as medium-density residential.

24              Rezonings are allowed in our regulations due to

25 the ever-changing conditions that exist in the county and
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1 elsewhere.  According to Article 14, Section 321, any such

2 change must promote the health, safety, morals, comfort, and

3 general welfare of Franklin County by conserving and

4 protecting property and building values, by securing the

5 most economical use of land, and facilitating the adequate

6 provision of public improvements in accordance with the

7 Master Plan adopted by Franklin County.

8              At the December 20, 2016 Planning and Zoning

9 Commission meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission

10 unanimously recommended approval of this rezoning request.

11                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All righty.

12              One question, Scottie.  This is within a mile

13 and a half of the incorporated city limits of St. Clair?

14                        MS. EAGAN:  Yes.

15                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Have they sent

16 any type of correspondence, whether they are either in

17 support or opposed?

18                        MS. EAGAN:  No.  They were notified,

19 but we haven't received anything back.

20                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

21 That's what we need to know.

22              All right.  Would anyone wishing to voice their

23 support for the application please come forward.  Is there

24 anybody in the audience wishing to support?

25                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]
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1                        MS. DARLENE GREEN:  Darlene Green,

2 and I think she kind of went over most of the stuff already.

3 But I'm just, you know, requesting that 17 acres of the

4 46 acres to be rezoned to commercial activity.

5                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Just let me

6 interrupt.  Are you again the applicant Darlene Green?

7                        MS. GREEN:  Yes.

8                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  Sorry.

9 Go ahead.  Sorry.

10                        MS. GREEN:  And I kind of added that

11 property mainly because of the access to Highway 44.  So I

12 thought that the Highway 44 and then the side street

13 certainly can encourage auto access to this facility from

14 like a 50-mile primary market.  And then that's just the

15 legal description.  I wasn't sure if you needed that.

16              So in between the two properties -- so Ram

17 Fleet and Power is on one side.  And I'll show you on the

18 next slide and the diagram. And ABF Storage is on the other,

19 and currently the property is leased to a neighbor.  He just

20 kind of runs a cattle and grows hay.  And then this is the

21 property location.

22              And then you can kind of see how it's divided

23 in half.  That front part is the part that we're requesting

24 to be rezoned.  And you can kind of see how Highway 44 is

25 right there in the red, and then the dotted line, that's the
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1 railroad.

2              And I suppose -- is it okay to say what I was

3 wanting, my intent was for the property?

4                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Sure.

5                        MS. GREEN:  Okay.  Because I wanting

6 to do a -- build up a barn as well as -- that would be about

7 3600 square feet.  And it would be more of a weekend-only

8 type operation.  And then it would not be open to public.

9 It would be invited guests only.

10              Saturdays would have like an end time of around

11 midnight.  And then like a Friday or a week day would be

12 like an end time of around 10 o'clock.

13              I think there's plenty of parking that could be

14 utilized, and right where the parking is right above the --

15 next to the pond and where kind of the barn is what we are

16 thinking is where it would be located.  That would be the

17 best positioning of it.  And it would be in the -- you know,

18 my plans would kind of like that.  It'll be a one-and-a-half

19 story.  It's got a loft in it, but it's really a one-story

20 type facility.

21              And then there would be, you know, plumbing,

22 indoor plumbing, and a craft kitchen, but there would be no

23 food production.  I have kind of the general floor plan.

24 That's just the loft.

25              And I thought that the benefits to the -- this
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1 event center would provide the community would be providing

2 jobs for local contractors for the construction and

3 long-term maintenance of barn and grounds.  I think it would

4 infuse the county with revenue from out-of-town guests.  And

5 then it would promote businesses to the area hotels and

6 restaurants, and then I'm a supporter of and promote local

7 small businesses as well.  So that would be, you know, your

8 florists and DJs and photographers.

9              I've also talked with Mr. Williams.  We talked

10 a little bit about, you know, a road easement being needed.

11 So that's also something that can be a benefit.

12              So this is kind of an existing and future land

13 maps there.  And it's kind of hard to see.  So I blew up

14 that map, and so right now in the circle is the existing

15 property, and then you can see in the future, right where I

16 have that little arrow, you can see that little property in

17 the orange.

18              And then to the north and south, just property

19 down is commercial.  And it would not be the whole -- you

20 know, it would again be that front 17 acres.  And I think it

21 kind of looks like it would fit right there into that future

22 land map, especially with the existing businesses that are

23 already commercial.

24              And I know that change draws concern to the

25 community.  So I kind of wanted to bring that up and that,
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1 you know, noise and traffic and alcohol are kind of your

2 three big ones, but I think this location being near the

3 highway and railroad, you know, there is a little bit of a

4 noise as it is.  But this is going to be, you know, a

5 non-outdoor type of function.  It will be all indoor.  If

6 there was to be any type of ceremony, they would have like

7 small speakers, and it would be directed towards them.

8              All the traffic -- I mean, all the parking

9 would be kept on-site.  So there wouldn't be any driving up

10 and down streets, or shuttling people back and forth.  And

11 since it's mostly an outer road, there's no driving through

12 subdivisions or across anybody's, you know, driveway.

13              There will be -- I do not plan to apply for a

14 liquor license.  So if that's something somebody would want,

15 that would be like an additional contract and additional

16 insurance, and that would really have to be other contracts

17 involved in that.

18              And then some of the lesser discussed concerns

19 I think are kind of safety and aesthetic.  And then, like I

20 said, I actually have spoken with Craig Melms [ph.], the

21 fire chief at St. Clair and -- which is only two miles from

22 this property.  And he just -- we would comply with all the

23 safety rules that would go along with that.

24              And the barn and the parking would be kind of

25 positioned in that it really wouldn't be in line of site of
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1 any present homes either, just kind of overlooking the

2 grazing cows.

3              And then I know like some people worry about

4 the commercial status, but if the activity is granted there,

5 then it would continue to spur commercial activity.  That is

6 a possibility, but I thought that keeping it near the

7 highway and the railroad is a good compromise to generate

8 the economic growth of the county and not intrude on

9 residents down winding roads even to rural Franklin County.

10              I wanted to find a balance of the commercial

11 business and of course the rural life here, and I think this

12 barn is being built kind of continue and preserve the ag

13 production of this property.  The barn actually has the

14 potential to be converted into a home as well, and I kind of

15 envision it to be a productive member of the community where

16 they could host, you know, community or charity events.

17 Proms for area schools since it's so close to St. Clair.

18              So that was kind of my hope, is that this

19 project is found to benefit the community and kind of

20 represents the appropriate changes that you guys are looking

21 for and that you find in favor of approving the rezoning.

22                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Tim, Dave, you

23 got questions for the Applicant?

24                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  No,

25 considering it's -- the request is changing from Residential
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1 Development to Commercial Activity, I don't have anything

2 regarding the difference.  It's all on paper.

3                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  I guess my

4 question is was the type of zoning that you have right now,

5 residential versus what you wan to go to, I'm assuming that

6 the type of commercial activity that you want to go to is

7 not allowed in the type of zoning category that you have

8 right now.

9              Scottie, is that correct?

10                        MS. EAGAN:  Correct.

11                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All righty.

12 That's all I have.

13              Okay.  Sir, I'll call on you.  Thank you very

14 much.

15              Is there anyone else in the audience wish to

16 testify in favor of the rezoning, in favor?  [None]  All

17 right.

18              Anyone in the audience wishing to testify in

19 opposition to the rezoning, in opposition?

20              Sir, do you wish to testify in opposition?

21                        MR. ROBERT KIMKER:  I --

22                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  If you're

23 going to do it, you got to come forward and be sworn in to

24 be a part of the record.

25                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]
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1                        MR. KIMKER:  Robert Kimker, 864 West

2 Springfield.

3                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Your name's

4 Robert Kimker?

5                        MR. KIMKER:  Right.

6                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.

7                        MR. KIMKER:  I couldn't see the

8 picture clear enough where it is compared to where my house

9 is.  That's what I was trying to -- I wish I could have come

10 closer in to see.  And -- but the other question was do they

11 need that many acres just for that building?  Like they were

12 saying 17 acres, and I didn't think that was a lot for just

13 the building and the parking, is what I was thinking.  Like

14 the barn could be that.  That could stay commercial -- I

15 mean, residential, correct, and is that farming?

16                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  I don't

17 believe it would have to be agriculture, wouldn't it?

18                        MS. EAGAN:  If she was just building

19 a barn, yes.  She could have done that in SD, but with the

20 business that she wants to run, no.  She can't do that in

21 SD.

22                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  Would

23 you show him.  If you look on the map there --

24                        MR. KIMKER:  Yeah, that's where I can

25 see.
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1                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  -- where this

2 property is.  That might not be the...

3                        MR. KIMKER:  This is the whole

4 property, but she's wanting to just take part of that?

5                        MS. EAGAN: I also need you to sign

6 in, but it looks like the property line or the 17 acres is

7 just west of his property line.

8                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Ms. Green, if

9 I could ask you, is there a way you could pull that other

10 map back up?

11                        MS. GREEN:  Yeah.

12                        COMMISSIONER HINSON:  Mr. Kimker, is

13 your property right next to Wyatt's?  You're two down from

14 there, aren't you?

15                        MR. KIMKER:  There are 350 feet

16 between me and Wyatt's.  But the back of mine comes in

17 against hers.

18                        COMMISSIONER HINSON:  Right, but I

19 don't think it would on that 17 acres --

20                        MR. KIMKER:  Well, what you said

21 there's like 43 acres, the whole section?

22                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  We're going to

23 have her pull it back up on the screen here so you can take

24 a look at it.

25                             MR. KIMKER:  Oh, that's a good
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1 picture.  Is the barn going to be used for cattle or for

2 other use?

3                        MS. GREEN:  No, it would be for other

4 use.  I'm sorry.  I'm trying to get this up.  There it is.

5                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  We've got this

6 other color picture too.

7                        MS. GREEN:  I don't know if I can

8 zoom in for you.  This is the barn right here, and then this

9 is the ABS, and there's a property here but I don't believe

10 there's a home on it.  And there is a property here, and I

11 do believe there is a home on that one.

12                        MR. KIMKER: That would be mine where

13 the offset is because my dad sold that three acres to Sandy

14 Huff there, that's jogged out there.  And my property is

15 right up from there west.

16                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  Where

17 is this property at right there?

18                        MR. KIMKER:  Where the offset --

19                        MS. GREEN:  Is that where it's at

20 right there?

21                        MR. KIMKER:  Yeah, does it say Kimker

22 there?

23                        MS. GREEN:  I know, and I don't know

24 how -- I'll see if I can zoom in on this.

25                        MS. EAGAN:  It is his property.
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1                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  You guys

2 realize that pointing back and forth is not going to show up

3 on the record because to get the record preserve, your

4 making reference to it is just not working.

5                        MS. GREEN:  Yeah, so I don't know the

6 addresses of these two properties.  But it's just that's

7 that Ram Powerhouse right here.

8                        MR. KIMKER:  So the barn is going to

9 be south of Archie Shag's [ph.] house?

10                        MS. GREEN:  That's where I'm

11 thinking.

12                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  You need to

13 make sure you use your microphone -- your questions are in

14 the microphone so she --

15                        MS. GREEN:  And I'm holding this on

16 here.

17                        MR. KIMKER:  By the way, has the

18 people that's buying Archie Shag's house been notified that

19 this is happening, because they are closing on his place

20 right now.  He just came back from Bolivia the other day,

21 and he's selling his home. I just heard this two minutes ago

22 from a friend of mine.

23                        MS. GREEN:  Which house it that one?

24                        MR. KIMKER:  That's the Shag.

25                        COMMISSIONER HINSON:  It's the one
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1 right next to the Ramp house.

2                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  So just for

3 clarification, all we're doing here today, folks --

4 everyone, is all we're doing is considering rezoning a

5 parcel from one zoning to another.  We're not considering

6 anything else.  What is before us is the rezoning of a

7 parcel of property irrespective of what's going to be put on

8 it.  Does that proposed zoning...

9                        MR. KIMKER:  Yeah, I'm just

10 questioning what could be put on it.

11                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  Stuff that's

12 outside of the relevancy of the hearing itself.  You know

13 what I'm saying?  No disrespect.

14                        MR. KIMKER:  Yeah.

15                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  I'm just

16 saying that's really what we're here for.

17                        MR. KIMKER: I'm just worried about

18 how it would affect me in the past as far as -- since it

19 backs up against my property.

20                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  Understood.

21                        MR. KIMKER:  Right.  So it's less

22 than 600 feet away, in other words.

23                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  Understood.

24                        MR. KIMKER:  It's next to it, just

25 the back side.  Okay, thank you.  But I just worrying about
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1 if it's like maybe a truck line would be pulling in there

2 and -- or whatever, you know.

3                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  By the way,

4 did you sign in?

5                        MR. KIMKER:  I couldn't find a place

6 to sign.  That's what I needed to know.

7                        MS. REPORTER:  Right here.

8                        MR. KIMKER: Thank you.

9                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Thank you.

10              Is there anyone else in the audience wishing to

11 testify in opposition to the rezoning?

12              Come forward and then Sign in, and she'll --

13 you'll be sworn in.

14                        MR. ADAM PIONTEK:  Sure.

15                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

16              My name is Adam Piontek, and I am representing

17 a -- one of the neighbors who is out of state and couldn't

18 be here, Mr. Ealer [ph.].

19              He -- his issue with this rezoning is that he

20 just wanted a clarification that the commercial entrance off

21 of the road would have enough clearance on each side to not

22 pose a safety issue for people coming and going as they

23 would if it was rezoned.  So...

24                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  See, that's an

25 issue that we have no jurisdiction over.
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1                        MR. PIONTEK:  Okay.

2                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  We're looking

3 at strictly the rezoning part and not the technical side of

4 it.

5                        MR. PIONTEK:  Okay, that's --

6                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  You can pass

7 along to your client no matter what, the zoning ingress and

8 egress will always have to abide by the codes of Franklin

9 County.

10                        MR. PIONTEK:  Will do.  Thank you.

11 Thank you.

12                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

13 Thank you.

14              Anyone else wish to testify in opposition to

15 the rezoning, in opposition?

16              Or for informational purposes only on the

17 rezoning?

18              Okay.  Informational purposes?

19                        MS. DENISE WISSMAN:  Yes.

20                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  Enter

21 and sign in please and be sworn in.

22                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

23                        MS. WISSMAN:  Denise Wissman.  I have

24 two properties adjoining -- I'm just not sure where it

25 adjoins.  But our question is that will there be a lot of
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1 security or parking lots at night that will obstruct the

2 view?  And if -- once it's rezoned, what will prevent the

3 owner from changing his or her mind and putting in a bar, a

4 strip club, salvage yard, asphalt plant, which we already

5 have across from us?  What would prevent it from changing?

6                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Again, the

7 technical aspects we -- you know, once it's -- I'm just

8 telling you.  Once it's rezoned, it's rezoned.  Okay.  There

9 are certain things -- certain activities that can be allowed

10 in that rezoning district.  Okay.  But as far as the

11 security and all that, we can't get into that because that's

12 not a legal issue on a rezoning.  It's either rezoned or

13 it's not.

14                        MS. WISSMAN:  Okay.  So how about the

15 type of business that can go in?

16                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER: Scottie, if you

17 can address that.

18                        MS. EAGAN:  I mean, any sort of adult

19 entertainment is not allowed in that zoning district.

20              You're looking at more types of businesses that

21 draw from highways.  So yes, you can do a restaurant.  You

22 can do a bar.  Indoor commercial storage, manufacturing.

23 Oh, wait, sorry.  Wrong one.

24              So you can do a bed and breakfast, auction

25 house, golf courses, hotels.  You can still do indoor
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1 commercial storage, convenience stores, motor vehicle

2 related sales and service, offices, repairs shops,

3 recreational facilities such as bowling alleys, skating

4 rinks, all of that stuff.

5              But any sort of adult entertainment is not

6 allowed in that zoning district.

7                        MS. WISSMAN:  Okay.  That's all I

8 wanted to know.  Thank you.

9                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Thank you.

10 And you got her name, everything?

11                        MS. REPORTER:  Yes.

12                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

13              Anyone else wishing to testify for

14 informational purposes only on this rezoning?  [None]

15              Okay.  Seeing none, would the Applicant like to

16 do a rebuttal?  Is there any rebuttal on any of the

17 questions or anything?

18                        MS. GREEN:  No.

19                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  All

20 right.

21              That will conclude the hearing on File Number

22 160212, Darlene Green.

23              Okay.  Then the last public hearing will be

24 File 160240, Amendments to the 2001 Unified Land Use

25 Regulations.
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1              Scottie.

2                        MS. EAGAN:  I will start with the

3 hearing procedures.

4              At this time, I would like to place into the

5 record the Franklin County Unified Land Use Regulations as

6 Exhibit A, the official Zoning Map as Exhibit B, the

7 official Master Plan as Exhibit C, and the case file for

8 each case as Exhibit D for all the cases to be heard at this

9 hearing.

10                        [Thereupon, evidence was marked for

11                   identification and presented for the

12                   record as Exhibits A, B, C, and D.]

13              As each case is opened, a staff report will

14 first be read by the Planning and Zoning Department,

15 followed by the Commissioners' questions for the staff.

16              Then if anyone in the audience would like to

17 speak or comment during the hearing, they must first print

18 their name on the sign-in sheet provided, and then be sworn

19 in.  When it is your turn to speak, you will come to the

20 front of the room to address the Commission and only the

21 Commission, not anyone in the audience, with any questions

22 or comments.

23              Generally, the applicant is allowed to speak

24 first, followed by those in support and then those opposed.

25                   The applicant may speak again after
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1 comments from the general public to address any questions or

2 issues brought up during the hearing.

3              At the conclusion of all questions, comments,

4 and discussion concerning each case, the public hearing for

5 each case will conclude.  The decision will generally be

6 made by Commission Order at a later date during the County

7 Commission's regular meeting time.

8              This is File 160240.  We are seeking to amend

9 the regulations to include regulations pertaining to special

10 occasion permits.

11              I don't have an official staff report because

12 it's regulations for you guys, but to give you a little

13 background.  At the Planning and Zoning level, we've been

14 seeing a lot of -- well, you guys do a lot of rezonings for

15 special events with the single-item conditional use permits

16 for special events, and so we thought it was time to

17 actually look into it as possibly having our own regulations

18 for it so we can stop the process that's happening.

19              So I started doing research.  Unfortunate,

20 there is not a lot of regulations out there to kind of look

21 over.  So I just kind of drafted our own.  You have two sets

22 in front of you.  The first one is what was recommended to P

23 and Z.  The second one is the recommendation of P and Z.

24              And so I'll go through it and then tell you

25 what P and Z recommended to remove.
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1              So basically what we would do is, instead of

2 having special events periodic, we would now have special

3 occasions.  So we'd have special occasions indoor and

4 special occasions outdoor.  And what we did is we would have

5 special occasion permits, which would be permitted uses and

6 our non-urban and agricultural zoning district, community

7 development zoning district, commercial activity highway

8 service and commercial activity community business.

9              So it still doesn't address the problem we've

10 been having of a lot of people in Suburban Development

11 wanting to do special events, but it's still -- it's a new

12 process.  So that's something we need to talk about.

13              So how we have it set up is we have no special

14 occasion should be allowed to exceed an attendance level of

15 300 as a permitted use.  If you want to exceed 300 people,

16 then a conditional use permit would be required.

17              We have hours of operation.  Monday through

18 Thursday, 7:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.; Friday,  Saturday 9:00

19 a.m. to 12:00 a.m.; and Sunday 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

20              One thing that P and Z recommended to be

21 removed is the first page.  It says all staff  employed for

22 the special occasion must vacate the premise one hour after

23 the event ends.

24              We removed that because, one, it's hard to

25 enforce because we're not going to have anyone from my



 PUBLIC HEARINGS  2/7/2017

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 27

1 office out there to ensure that they're actually leaving the

2 premise.   And two, we talked with people who actually are

3 running special event facilities in Franklin County, and

4 they said getting everything done within the hour of the

5 event closing down is next to impossible.

6              So we have for special occasion indoor a

7 three-acre minimum; for special occasion facility outdoor,

8 we have a ten-acre minimum.

9              Obviously, any building will need a building

10 permit.

11              We say that for any gravel driveways or parking

12 areas that dust shall be minimized by reducing vehicle

13 speeds, and during visibly dry conditions applying water to

14 the areas.

15              For any sort of noise, whether it's amplified

16 or unamplified, we say that it shall end by 10:00 p.m.

17 Monday through Thursday and Sunday and 12:00 a.m. Friday and

18 Saturday.

19              For the lighting, the P and Z Commission

20 recommended that we remove the letter A, which stated all

21 outdoor lighting associated with the special occasion

22 facility shall be turned off by 12:45.  Again, that's just

23 something we're not going to able to enforce at that time in

24 the morning.  So now we'll just say the lighting associated

25 with a special occasion facility shall be limited to
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1 downcast and shielded fixtures so that the source of light

2 is not visible from adjacent roads or neighboring

3 properties.

4              Our parking requirements are exactly what they

5 are in Article 12.  So it's one space per four people, or

6 one space for four feet based on maximum capacity, whichever

7 is greater.

8              They're still going to be required to follow

9 our buffer regulations in Article 13.  They have to get

10 their access approved either by MoDOT or the Highway

11 Department if they're on a state or county road.

12              We did include setbacks for these type of

13 facilities.  So any sort of outdoor activity spaces, we have

14 100 feet from any property line and 200 feet from any

15 neighboring residents.  The parking shall be set back at

16 least 100 feet from any property line and 200 feet from any

17 neighboring residents.

18              And then for indoor activity space, it shall be

19 sat back 50 feet from any property line and 100 feet from

20 any neighboring residents.

21              Then we just get into the application side of

22 it and everything we're going to require.  And one thing we

23 will require is a detailed site plan drawn by an engineer,

24 and then also a lighting plan.

25              So this would all be added to Article 10 of our
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1 regulations.  So it would be Section 237.

2              Article 2 would change to where we have new

3 definitions.  One for specific occasion and one for special

4 occasion facility, and then we would get rid of special

5 events periodic.

6              And then Article 7 in here as well, just to

7 show you the changes from special events period to special

8 occasion.

9              So those are the proposed regulations for

10 special occasions.

11                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

12              First of all I'll ask either, Tim or Dave,

13 either of you have any questions on this before we begin the

14 public hearing side?

15                   COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  How is the 300

16 number determined on inhabitants for the conditional use?

17                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER: Make sure you

18 use your microphone.

19                        MS. EAGAN:  It was -- it's basically

20 I had it less than that originally based on the types of

21 facilities we had coming through here.  But then we started

22 talking with the Planning and Zoning Commission, and they

23 were saying how they've known a lot of weddings or have been

24 to a lot of weddings where there's 500 people, you know, 400

25 people.  So we figured 300 is kind of that middle ground of
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1 most facilities we have here can't even hold that, but if

2 they can, it would still be permitted.

3                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  Yeah, I mean,

4 my concern is that 300, when it's not enough, the only event

5 that exceeds that would be an outdoor opportunity that they

6 can certainly house that many or more, then they would have

7 to say no to potential client or use.

8                        MS. EAGAN:  I mean, depending on how

9 far away it is.  If they had enough time to get that

10 conditional use permit, --

11                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  Right.

12                        MS. EAGAN:  -- it wouldn't be an

13 issue.

14                        COMMISSIONER BRINKER:  That's true.

15 Most brides plan well in advance.

16                        COMMISSIONER HINSON: I guess my

17 question following up with that.  With us changing this are

18 we trying to get out of the special use permits?

19                        MS. EAGAN:  We're trying to get away

20 from the conditional use and rezoning aspect.

21                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Rezoning

22 particularly.

23                        COMMISSIONER HINSON:  Okay.

24                        MS. EAGAN:  But again, this won't fix

25 all of our issues because a lot of them are coming in
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1 Suburban Development.  There was a lot of discussion at the

2 Planning and Zoning level about that.  Some of them

3 disagreed with me, but I just don't feel like Suburban

4 Development is an area that should allow this type of

5 activity.

6                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  If I could,

7 you know, give a little history.  We've no classification

8 for this, and we've had several rezonings for these wedding

9 venues.  And it's either -- again, it's either rezoned or

10 not rezoned, and when the category -- it just got to the

11 point where that's what we were doing.  We were rezoning for

12 something that really wasn't in the regs.

13              So then the Planning and Zoning Commission went

14 back and you know, created this special permit section, and

15 hopefully it may not address everything, but at least -- at

16 least I think it's going to solve, I think, most of our

17 problems, at least by not having to rezone all the time.

18 There's a special category for this.

19                   MS. EAGAN:  Can I clarify something on

20 that?

21                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Yeah.

22                        MS. EAGAN:  We did have it in the

23 regulations as special events periodic.  That's carried in

24 about 2012.

25                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Yeah.
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1                        MS. EAGAN:  We amended it in 2014 and

2 took it out.  It used to be conditional in every zoning

3 district.  In 2014 we took it out of all of our Residential

4 -- more residential areas and put it in more of our

5 commercial areas, as well as Non-Urban and Agricultural.

6              What the Planning and Zoning Commission -- what

7 they have a hard time with is having all of these special

8 events come up in front of them and not holding them to the

9 same exact code.  So rather than having conditional use

10 permits that vary so greatly, they would rather have a set

11 of codes that everything can follow.

12                        COMMISSIONER HINSON:  Yeah.  I agree

13 with that.  I just -- the artificial number because with the

14 building codes and fire codes and that, I think those folks

15 are going to set the limit instead of us artificially

16 setting the limit.

17                        MS. EAGAN:  And I also did give you

18 guys, I forgot, and example of what our application form

19 could potentially look like with a fee of $150.  That's

20 based on what I think our review time will be in our office

21 and then what our costs are.

22                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  But see, I

23 think this greatly -- again, it's not an end of all, but at

24 least it does solve the problem that we don't have to rezone

25 the property specifically proceeded for a special event, you
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1 know, you got a wedding venue or whatever.

2                        MS. EAGAN:  And another benefit to

3 this is even if it's in CA, CD or CA3, they still have to go

4 through our process and get this permitted.

5                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Yep.

6                        MS. EAGAN:  Which now they can do it

7 without even coming through us.

8                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  As a point of

9 clarification too, there is a letter that we did receive

10 yesterday from John Holds and Sophia Chung that we'll enter

11 into the record regarding this.

12                        [Thereupon, evidence was previously

13                   marked for identification as Exhibit No.

14                   1, and admitted into the record.]

15              Did you get a copy of that, Mark?

16                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  I didn't.

17                        MS. EAGAN:  I don't know if I have a

18 copy of that either.

19                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Oh, you guys

20 didn't.  Okay.  Maybe it only came to us, but...

21                        MS. EAGAN:  Is it two pages?

22                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Yes.

23                        MS. EAGAN:  Okay.  Yeah, we have

24 that.

25                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  So you
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1 didn't get that, Mark?

2                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  I'll look

3 through that.

4                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  That

5 will be entered into the record.

6              Any other questions from you guys?  Okay.

7              Is there anyone in the audience wishing to

8 testify in favor of the amendments, in favor of the zoning

9 or the amendment to -- to the articles?  [None]  Seeing

10 none.

11              Anyone in the audience wish to testify in

12 opposition to the changes to the amendments, opposition?

13              Yes, sir.  Come forward, and again sign in and

14 be sworn in.

15                        MS. EAGAN:  And it is marked as an

16 exhibit, John.

17                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  As is

18 the other one?

19                        MS. EAGAN:  The other one is not

20 marked as an exhibit.

21                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

22                        MR. JERRY WILDING:  Jerry, with a

23 'J', Wilding.  W-I-L-D-I-N-G.

24              Good afternoon.  My name is Jerry Wilding.  I'm

25 here today I think partially under the mistaken assumption
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1 that this part of the hearing was to deal specifically with

2 a parcel of property located on Highway OO in Franklin

3 County that the developers are requesting to build a wedding

4 chapel.  Having heard your comments today, I believe this

5 meeting here specifically is tailored to reconsideration of

6 the special events permitting process. Is That's correct?

7                   CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Yeah, this is to

8 the changes.  I'm not sure which application it was, but we

9 might have already rezoned that property a couple of months

10 ago, if I'm not mistaken.

11                        MR. WILDING:  Okay.  Well, my

12 assumption was that the developers of that property were

13 attempting to get a special events permit for that property,

14 and that that's what was occurring today.  But apparently

15 that's not what is occurring.  So I'm not going to make any

16 comment specific to that particular development.  But in

17 general, you know, the one comment that I would like to make

18 is a special events permit, at least in my mind,

19 contemplates an occasional or periodic event, and for

20 developers wanting to come up with a wedding chapel, wedding

21 reception type area, they're wanting to have a full-time

22 business and use that property every weekend, every Friday,

23 every Saturday, every Sunday, and you know, if they could,

24 probably every day of the week.

25              So I guess would ask that the Board consider in
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1 a situation like that, particularly these types of wedding

2 event places, that you know, perhaps it's just more of a

3 regular commercial property as opposed to some sort of

4 special event, and that the Board -- I would appreciate if

5 they would take into consideration the neighbors of these

6 properties who are going to be subjected to these crowds,

7 these noise, the lights, all the other things that go along

8 with it every single time there is an event.

9              This not a limited one-time thing where

10 somebody is having their daughter get married on their farm.

11 This is a situation -- this is a business where they are

12 wanting these folks in as much as they possibly can.  And if

13 you have lights on all hours of the day and night or you

14 know, until one in morning or whatever, whether they're

15 downcast or not, that's going to be quite a burden on the

16 neighboring properties.

17              So that's what I'd like to add to this.

18                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.  Any

19 questions for the witness?

20              One point of clarification.  I'm saying -- of

21 the address, I don't know if that was the property that we

22 dealt with a month or so ago.

23              Was that the right address?

24                        MS. EAGAN:  Yes.

25                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Okay.
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1              And then, you know, just so you know, we do

2 take those factors into consideration when we do that.  But

3 at least with this, again we had the application before us,

4 and it's either rezoned or not rezoned.  You know,

5 particularly when people do not come and testify, we've had

6 in some of these hearings we don't have a whole lot of

7 choice.  We do, but we do take those -- we do take the

8 adjoining owners into consideration whenever we do a

9 rezoning.  But I again -- again this may not be the end of

10 all, but certainly in my mind, this is a lot better than

11 just rezoning the property where you have to, you know,

12 actually get to do something use basically -- or special use

13 permit to perform that type activity on that property.

14                        MR. WILDING:  Correct.  So would it

15 be under this scenario that anyone who wants to have a

16 wedding venue event would need this type of permit?

17                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Uh-huh.

18 That's why we have them.  We have a specifically a specific

19 application, and I don't know.  Scottie, if you've got a

20 copy of that application form, but there is actually a

21 specific application form that they're -- they will -- the

22 applicant will have to fill out and for that -- you know,

23 for those events.  So...

24                        MR. WILDING:  All right.  Thank you.

25                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Uh-huh.  Thank
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1 you.

2              All right.  Is there anyone else in the

3 audience wish to testify in opposition?  Yeah, come on

4 forward.

5              Again sign in, please and then be sworn in.

6                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

7                        MR. JOHN HOLDS:  John Holds, and I

8 want to thank the Commissioners, Mr. Griesheimer, Brinker,

9 and Hinson for giving me a few minutes to comment on this.

10              And I see the enthusiasm, and I will apologize.

11 In my written testimony, I had to put it in the word event

12 instead of occasion.  So there are a couple of errors in

13 there.  I kind of cranked that out rather rapidly first

14 thing yesterday morning.

15                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  I'm sorry.  We

16 make a lot of those to.  So you're fine.

17                        MR. HOLDS:  Yeah.  Well, it's all in

18 the words.  But the -- and I see the enthusiasm for this.

19 My concern about the special event permit process is it

20 sounds like it's going to make the process much easier to

21 get a venue of this sort.  And it's sort of a boilerplate in

22 terms of hours and so on.  My understanding with especially

23 the current conditional use permit process, is that you

24 probably have the opportunity as neighbors to try to come in

25 and negotiate hours and so on.  There's not a boilerplate
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1 stamp on things, and this sort of creates a boilerplate.

2              You know, the other thing I would comment on

3 zoning is that currently -- and Mr. Wilding and I are in the

4 same boat in that we are adjoining properties of the

5 property on OO that Mr. Muckler is attempting to acquire for

6 a wedding chapel, which -- or I wouldn't say chapel.  This

7 is really a rather massive undertaking.

8              I note in my testimony if this were -- he's got

9 22,200 square feet of proposed buildings.  So if you put

10 this up as a strip mall, it would be 150 yards long and 50

11 feet deep.  He's got 196 parking spots.  So it's kind of

12 like they're building something the size of the scope of

13 Walmart that will be open with live music till midnight.

14              Currently only neighbors within 600 feet are

15 notified.  That list was pretty limited.  I had -- I copied

16 the zoning and CUP files, and I think Ms. Eagan and Ms.

17 Zielke have seen me wandering around the office.  But -- so

18 only a few people were notified.  None of the people up in

19 Forest Glen Subdivision have any idea really that this is

20 coming.  And you stand up there.  You're looking straight at

21 this hillside.  They're not going to need lights in their

22 backyard.

23              So I have concern that this special occasion

24 permit actually makes this process much easier for a

25 developer.  It'll streamline.  Things will move rapidly.
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1              And just a couple of questions and comments.

2 And as I said, I understand this isn't about the Muckler

3 rezoning today, but the December 20th hearing, it's almost

4 as if everything that they wanted was kind of the

5 boilerplate that this thing was built around.  It was a very

6 interesting discussion, you know, how the number of people

7 involved went from 200 to 300, you know, and -- and so on.

8              And obviously you build a venue this size,

9 although with a 196 parking spots, according to code, they

10 could have -- if they weren't limited otherwise, they could

11 have over 800 -- almost 800 guests.

12              Were the -- the question for the Commission,

13 were the setbacks changed at any point in the discussion

14 process from the first, second draft in terms of either

15 indoor activity space or outdoor activity space?  I'm just

16 curious.

17                        MS. EAGAN:  You asking me or them?

18                        MR. HOLDS:  Yeah.  Well, Ms. Eagan or

19 any of the Commission.  Does anybody recall?

20                        MS. EAGAN:  Setbacks were not

21 changed.

22                        MR. HOLDS:  They were not changed,

23 okay.  Is that a common setback for a conditional use permit

24 currently?

25                        MS. EAGAN:  Conditional use permits
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1 don't have any setbacks.

2                        MR. HOLDS:  Okay.  They have no --

3 they have no defined setbacks.  All right.

4              And so in any case, I would encourage the

5 Commission to sort of move slowly and kind of look at

6 things.  And I have kind of a fundamental zoning question

7 and comment regarding just putting a commercial venture

8 that's this size.  In the case of the of the Muckler

9 property, the ten acres was rezoned.  Almost half of that

10 will be covered with concrete and asphalt, and this is on an

11 agricultural -- Non-Urban and Agricultural district.  You

12 read just the general zoning guidelines.  It says the intent

13 of this district is to allow agriculture, recreation,

14 wildlife, forestry, open space, farming, and related uses

15 next to low-density residential development.

16              I mean, you know, almost half of the space gets

17 covered with concrete or asphalt, and I -- I find it

18 interesting that you can put a commercial venture of that

19 size and scope onto a Non-Urban Agricultural zoning.  I

20 understand that may have been -- that may be the common

21 practice, but I just find it kind of incongruous that it

22 doesn't seem to fit the definition at all to me.

23                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

24                        MR. HOLDS:  Thank you.

25                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  Thank you.
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1              Is there anyone else in the audience wishing to

2 testify in opposition to the amendments to the zoning code,

3 in opposition?  [None] Okay.

4              Is there anyone in the audience wish to testify

5 for informational purposes only on the amendments to the

6 zoning code, revisions?  [None] Seeing none.

7              Scottie, any rebuttal?

8                        MS. EAGAN:  No.

9                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  No, all right.

10 Mark?

11                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  No.

12                        CHAIRMAN GRIESHEIMER:  All right.

13              Seeing none, that will conclude the public

14 hearing on File Number 160240 on the amendments, the

15 revisions.

16              All right.  That is the last the public

17 hearing.   We -- unless you all have something, we are

18 adjourned.

19                        [Thereupon, the proceedings

20                   concluded at 2:20 p.m.]

21                             o8o

22

23

24

25
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1                        CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

2

3              I, PATSY A. HERTWECK, Professional Court

4 Reporter and Notary Public within and for the State of

5 Missouri, before whom the foregoing proceeding was taken, do

6 hereby swear that the aforementioned was held at the time

7 and in the place previously described.

8              IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

9 hand.

10                        _________________________________

11                        Patsy A. Hertweck, Court Reporter

12                        Notary Public, State of Missouri

13

14 My Commission Expires:

15 August 26, 2018

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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